
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\MPS\Plan Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2023\Plan Com Notice 041023.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as 


indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, April 10, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


 
In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


   321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89046560214?pwd=dXc5aXJiUzhaOW1ya1BTc0VzVlNzZz09 


 


Phone in:  312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 890 4656 0214 Passcode:  552001 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any 
written comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


 


AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Roll call and verification of quorum. 


3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law. 


4. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of March 13, 2023.   


5. Council Representative Report. 


6. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


7. Comprehensive Plan Amendment - STI Holdings. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


8. Certified survey to combine the properties at 1000-1008 Nordland Drive. 


 Recommendation to Council 


9. Request for approval to allow a wider driveway width at 325/333 Isham Street. 


10. Planned Development Concept Plan for Lots 15 and 27 at Kettle Park West. 


11. Discuss home occupation sales. 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89046560214?pwd=dXc5aXJiUzhaOW1ya1BTc0VzVlNzZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\MPS\Plan Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2023\Plan Com Notice 041023.docx 


 


12. Future agenda items. 


13. Adjournment. 
 


COMMISSIONERS:  


Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair   Tom Robinson   Dorann Bradford 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 


Leadership Team     Council members  Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne   Stoughton Hub  Area Townships  


Peter Sveum     Michael Stacey  Chamber of Commerce 


smonette@stolib.org    Spencer Meier   wstotv981@gmail.com  


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com  Sue Strandlie   Bob Wahlin 


Ryan Birschbach    Bob Dvorak   Michelle Dupont 


Rob Hostrawser    Stephen Tremlett  Connor Nett 


Konner Kearney 


     


    


    


 


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 


accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In 


addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have 


access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  


 



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com






T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  031323.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, March 13, 2023 at 6:00 pm 


Hybrid Meeting 


 


Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Phil Caravello;  


Dorann Bradford; Tom Majewski; Tom Robinson and Al Farrow 


Members Absent: None 


Staff:  Director of Planning and Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael 


Stacey 


Guests: Tom Matson; Ryan Birschbach; John Ford; Teresa Lindfors; Chris Schmitz; Nick 


Tennessen; Lisa Reeves; Eric Sykes; Stephen Tremlett; Patricia Cross; Christopher Tank; James 


McFadden; Julie Peterson; Mark Holzmann; Layne and Pam Close; Michael Engelberger; Tyler 


Denig and John Matson. 


 


1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Roll call and verification of quorum.  Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present. 


 


3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law.  Mayor Swadley certified 


compliance with open meetings law. 


 


4. Plan Commission meeting minutes of February 13 and 27, 2023.   


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried 


unanimously.  


 


5. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated the Common Council approved resolutions 17, 24 and 25, 2023 and 


postponed resolutions 26 and 27, 2023. 


 


6. Status of Current Developments.   
Scheel introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials and 


reminded the Commission of the upcoming joint meeting with the Common Council on April 


11, 2023 for the Kwik Trip CUP.  There were no questions. 


 


7. Planned Development – General Development Plan for Stoughton Hospital at 


900 Ridge Street.   
Scheel gave an overview of the proposed planned development – general development plan. 


 


Teresa Lindfors of Stoughton Hospital explained the proposed project including: 


 Meeting with the area neighbors to discuss the project; 


 Reduction of 18 parking spaces to allow more landscaping and buffer at the west 


parking area; 


 Moved the entrance from Lynn Street to Ridge Street; 


 Plan to use the west parking area primarily for daytime staff use; 


 Plan to have the west parking lot lighting on a timer for less neighborhood disruption; 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


3/13/23 


Page 2 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  031323.docx 


 


 Plan to continue to work with neighbors on the landscaping plan for the west parking 


area. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


Layne Close spoke in support of the project and to be included in the process. 


 


Mark Holzmann spoke in support and expressed concern about aspects of the west parking 


lot plan. 


 


Julie Peterson spoke with concern about the west parking lot plan along Lynn Street 


including the increase in traffic. 


 


Teresa Lindfors registered in favor and spoke prior to the hearing. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Scheel explained the planned development process and suggested adding a recital within the 


ordinance that describes all of the parcels that are part of the general development plan. 


 


Farrow questioned if the parking could be one large lot instead of split.  Nick Tennessen of 


Kapur Inc stated there is a 7-foot drop in elevation going to the west which will require a 


retaining wall between the east and west parking lots. 


 


Farrow questioned the landscaping requirements.  Scheel explained the landscaping 


requirements are by a point system.  Mayor Swadley stated there have been recent changes to 


the landscaping requirements with the assistance of the City Tree Commission. 


 


Farrow questioned the lighting footcandle requirements for the overall parking area.  Scheel 


stated there is a maximum footcandle requirement of 0.5 at the property line. 


 


Caravello questioned the entry/exit location for the west parking lot and the affect on the 


neighborhood. 


 


Caravello questioned the difference between using the Institutional zoning vs the Planned 


Development classification.  Scheel explained the Planned Development zoning still uses the 


underlying zoning of Institutional and the reason to use the Planned Development zoning is 


to reduce the required setbacks along Academy and Church Streets.  Scheel stated a variance 


from the zoning code would be hard to acquire compared to using the Planned Development 


approach. 


 


Caravello questioned the overage of parking stalls.  Scheel stated the number of parking 


stalls will be reviewed as part of the Specific Implementation Plan process and is not part of 


the GDP process.   


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


3/13/23 


Page 3 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  031323.docx 


 


Majewski questioned why the whole parking area cannot be graded to be one parking lot and 


eliminate the need for a retaining wall.  Majewski also questioned if there would be onsite 


stormwater retention.  Scheel stated onsite management is required.  Nick Tennessen stated 


grading the whole site is not feasible due to the extreme grade difference, higher cost and it 


would be difficult to manage stormwater. 


 


Schumacher stated he is sad to see the mature trees will have to be removed and asked if a 2 


layer parking structure was considered at the existing east parking area.  Teresa Lindfors 


stated a parking structure was considered and the cost is around $30,000 per parking stall. 


This cost is prohibitive for a non-profit organization.  Schumacher questioned if one would 


be considered in the long range plan.  Teresa Lindfors could not say never but there are no 


plans at this time. 


 


Scheel and Mayor Swadley explained the process going forward. 


 


Caravello questioned the timing of the land banked parcels.  Teresa Lindfors stated they 


cannot predict when those parcels would be needed for parking. 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the Planned Development 


– General Development Plan ordinance with the additional recital, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 


 


8. Certified Survey Map (CSM) for Stoughton Hospital, 900 Ridge Street, to 


combine several properties for a proposed building addition and parking lot 


expansion. 
Scheel explained the request and noted the CSM will go to Council with the GDP second 


reading on April 11, 2023. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the resolution for the 


CSM to combine parcels as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


9. Urban Service Area Amendment for the expansion of Stone Crest. 
Scheel gave an overview of the proposed amendment. 


 


Tom and John Matson were available for questions. 


 


Steve Tremlett had nothing more to add after Scheel’s overview. 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the resolution for the 


Urban Service Area Amendment as presented, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion carried unanimously.  


It was discussed that staff revisions may be incorporated prior to action by the Common 


Council  


 


 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


3/13/23 


Page 4 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  031323.docx 


 


 


10. Building Additions and Site Improvements at Water Street Tavern, 324 S. Water 


Street. 
Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


James McFadden gave an overview of the project. 


 


Scheel stated the site plan will need to be modified to show the required dumpster screening.  


James McFadden stated he understood. 


 


Bradford questioned the timing of the north addition.  James McFadden stated the addition is 


planned for September-October of 2023. 


 


Schumacher questioned if the north addition is completely enclosed.  James McFadden stated 


it is. 


 


Bradford questioned the distance the north addition would be from the north lot line.  Scheel 


stated the Central Business allows a zero setback from lot lines. 


 


Motion by Robinson to approve the site plan including the site plan amendment to include 


screening of the dumpster as required by code, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


11. Request to amend the zoning code section 78-206(8)(j) related to home 


occupation sales. 


Scheel introduced the request. 


 


Eric Sykes explained the request to change the ordinance to sell products from a home.  Eric 


Sykes stated many people sell various products from their homes especially since COVID. 


 


Scheel explained the potential process to amend the code to allow sales.  Scheel stated it is 


likely people are selling products from their homes and currently staff responds when a 


complaint is submitted. 


 


Caravello stated he is concerned about someone opening a store vs just selling Mary Kay or 


Tupperware products. 


 


Scheel stated all types of residential zoned properties are affected. 


 


Farrow, Schumacher, Bradford, Swadley and Majewski are in favor of looking into making a 


change.  Schumacher suggested creating a task force to review a change.   


 


Robinson stated he is fine with the way it is as a change may create more complaints. 


 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


3/13/23 


Page 5 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  031323.docx 


 


 


12. Future agenda items. 


 Magnolia Springs Final Plat and Rezoning. 


 Stoughton Hospital Addition SIP 


 Stoughton Trailers Development USAA 


 Comprehensive Plan Amendment for STI Holdings 


 Kwik Trip Public Hearing 


 Sales in Residential Areas 


 


Caravello questioned if there are any or should there be requirements for a gas station to be 


setback a certain distance from a school.  Scheel stated he does not know of any requirement. 


 


Farrow would like to see the Attorney summary of the conditional use review requirements 


provided to the public.  Scheel stated it is available online from the last meeting.  Mayor 


Swadley stated he would check with IT for options to provide it to the public. 


 


13. Adjournment. 


Motion by Caravello to adjourn at 7:29 pm, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Michael Stacey 








\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\MPS\Plan Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2023\Status of development 041023.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 


 


 


 


Date:  April 2, 2023 


 


To:  Plan Commission Members 


   


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


  Michael Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


Subject: Status of Current Developments  


 


Status of Development: 


 Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving left to do. 


 Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction. 


 Riverfront Development – SIP approved.  Expecting a Spring of 2023 start. 


 Dollar Tree – Landscaping, lighting, and bike rack still pending. 


 314 W. Main Street - Buildings under construction.   


 Emmi-Roth – Building under construction. 


 1680 Nygaard Street - first building is under construction. 


 Magnolia Springs final plat and rezoning expected in Spring 2023. 


 Popeye’s Chicken – Expected to start construction in Spring 2023. 


 1424 US Highway 51 – 138 – Multi-Unit Building expected to start in Spring 2023. 


 Comprehensive Plan Amendment and USAA for STI Holdings Development in process. 


 Cummins Addition – Permits not issued yet. 


 Stone Crest Expansion – USAA in process 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 


A Resolution to recommend the Stoughton Common Council Approve the Proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 


Committee Action: Plan Commission Approval 
 Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 


File Number: R-  -2023 Introduced: April 10, 2023 


 
The Plan Commission of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, does proclaim as follows: 


Section 1. Pursuant to §62.23(2) and (3) for cities, villages, and towns exercising village powers 
§60.22(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the City of Stoughton is authorized to amend its 
comprehensive plan as defined in §66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


Section 2. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, has adopted written 
procedures designed to foster public participation in every stage of the preparation of the plan 
amendment as required by §66.1001(4)(a) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


Section 3. MSA Professional Services, Inc. has prepared amendments to the City's comprehensive plan 
as reflected in Exhibit A. 


Section 4. The Plan Commission recognizes the importance of the City's existing land use, 
economic development, transportation, park and recreation, and housing planning documents as 
important tools to guide the City's future. 


Section 5. BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission recommends the 
Comprehensive Plan be amended as provided in Exhibit A and recommends the Stoughton Common 
Council Adopt an Ordinance Amending the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 







City of Stoughton 
Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment 


 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Stoughton will hold a public hearing on Monday, April 10 
at 6:00 p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider amending the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building), 321 S. Fourth Street, 
Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual: You can join the meeting via Zoom or Phone below: 
 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89046560214?pwd=dXc5aXJiUzhaOW1ya1BTc0VzVlNzZz09 
 
Phone in: +1 312 626 6799  Meeting ID: 890 4656 0214 Passcode: 552001 
 
The proposed plan amendment modifies the future land use maps and transportation map 
pertaining to the approximately 182 acre at the southeast corner of USH 51 and CTH B.  The 
proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan will delete the 2006 Linnerud Detailed 
Neighborhood Plan and replace it to reflect a community vision as presented by the current land 
owners; STI Holdings, Inc.  While the intended uses are generally consistent with the uses 
identified in the Linnerud Plan, their configuration on the site is expected to vary from the current 
plan. Most notably, the area identified for Recreation and Open Space is expected to be larger due 
to more stringent stormwater management standards and the intent to dedicate more parkland 
than is required by ordinance to develop a large community park. The proposed plan amendment 
also modifies the primary transportation route with an 80-foot right-of-way extending from USH 
51 to CTH B. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan is a blueprint for the short-range and long-range growth, redevelopment, 
and preservation of the City and will be used by City officials as a policy guide to help make 
decisions regarding the growth and development of the City. This is a proposed amendment of the 
City’s existing Comprehensive Plan, which was updated in 2017 and amended in 2019. 
 
The draft City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan document is available for review on the City’s 
website https://www.stoughtonplanning.com/comprehensive-plan , at the Stoughton Public 
Library and at the Department of Planning & Development’s office located at 207 S. Forrest 
Street. 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at http://speak.cityofstoughton.com 
by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting.  Written comments on the draft Comprehensive Plan 
should be submitted to Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 207 S. Forrest St. Stoughton, WI 
53589 or email to mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us. All written or electronic comments will be 
forwarded to the City of Stoughton Common Council members for their consideration. 
   


Candee Christen, City Clerk 
Published: March 9, 2023 
 
S:\Planning\MPS\Comprehensive Plan\2023 Amendment - STI\Comp Plan Amendment Public Hearing Notice.docx 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89046560214?pwd=dXc5aXJiUzhaOW1ya1BTc0VzVlNzZz09

https://www.stoughtonplanning.com/comprehensive-plan

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


1702 PANKRATZ STREET,  MADISON, WI 53704 
P (608) 242-7779    TF (800) 446-0679    F (608) 242-5664 


WWW.MSA-PS.COM 
 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 


Memo 


  
 


 To: Stoughton Plan Commission 


 From: Steve Tremlett, AICP, CNU-A 


 Subject: STI Property - Comp Plan Amendment 


 Date: March 6, 2023 
     
 


Overview 


STI Holding, Inc. is preparing a development proposal for a mix of business, residential, park and open 


space uses on 182 acres at the southeast corner of State Highway 51 and County Highway B.  


This land is currently identified on the future land use map (excerpt below, outlined in red), for Planned 


Mixed Use (purple), Planned Neighborhood (speckled yellow), and Recreation or Public Open Space 


(green). It is also the focus of Appendix B: 2006 Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood Plan (“Linnerud Plan”). 


What is STI Holding, Inc. Proposing? 


STI Holdings, Inc. envisions for this land the 


following uses: 


 A mix of high‐quality office and retail 


uses, including the new world 


headquarters facility for Stoughton 


Trailers 


 New homes, including a varied mix of 


attached‐unit housing in various forms 


and single‐family lots 


 A large community park (minimum 30 


acres) to accommodate both 


neighborhood and community‐wide 


recreation needs and extensive 


wetland and stormwater management 


features 


 







MEMO 
March 6, 2023 
 
 


Page 2 of 2 
   


Why is a Comprehensive Plan Amendment Needed? 


While the intended uses are consistent with the uses identified in the Linnerud Plan, their 


configuration on the site is expected to vary from the current plan. Most notably, the area 


identified in green for Recreation and Open Space is expected to be larger than currently shown 


due to more stringent stormwater management standards and the intent to dedicate more 


parkland than is required by ordinance to develop a large community park. Enhanced 


understanding of the natural characteristics of the site may alter which parts of the site are 


reserved for these purposes. 


The Linnerud Plan was adopted into the Comprehensive Plan and the City is therefore required 


to demonstrate consistency with the very detailed land use configurations in the plan. That plan 


was created around a proposed Walmart that was later developed elsewhere. While the mix of 


uses is generally similar to what STI intends to propose, there is concern that the consistency 


requirement cannot be satisfied due to the detailed land use mapping in the neighborhood 


plan. 


Following discussion with City staff, STI Holdings, Inc. prefers to amend the Comprehensive Plan 


to ensure, through a public process, that the plan and the development proposal will be 


compatible. 


 
Future Land Use Map Amendment 


 


 


 
See Exhibit A for the full amendment to the Comp Plan. 







EXIHIBIT A: PROPOSED COMP PLAN AMENDMENTS 


PROPOSED CHANGES 


‐‐‐‐‐ Page 15 ‐‐‐‐‐ 


 Areas to be preserved included the marshland, downtown and historic neighborhoods, 
1892 building, the Yahara River, undeveloped areas on both sides of the river, Viking 
County Park, and Mandt Park, Veterans Park. Most individuals wanted to see the Linnerud STI Holdings, 
Inc. property developed for residential and/or commercial uses, but some attendees indicated a 
desire to see the area preserved as an undeveloped natural area. 


 Key gathering places included the downtown and Main Street, Mandt Park, Veterans Park, 
and River Bluff Middle School. Future gathering places were suggested for the Riverfront/ 
MillFab site, Kettle Park West, the Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property, and in the City’s growth area to 
the south. 


 Transportation issues were identified at many of the USH 51/Main Street intersections 
including Roby Road, STH 138, and Hoel Avenue. Numerous attendees identified the intersection 
of USH 51 and STH 138 as an area of concern. Roads widening or safety improvements 
were suggested for USH 51 and for STH 138, especially north and west of City. New 
roads were suggested within Kettle Park West, north of the Business Park North, and in new 
growth areas east of the City. 


 Bicycle lanes were recommended on STH 138 and on City streets, including Van Buren 
Street, King’s Lynn Road, Jackson Street, Roby Road, Page Street, and South Street. Bicycle 
facilities were also recommended for the rail corridor and in future City growth areas. There 
was strong support for off-street trails along one or both sides of the Yahara River. Loops 
trails were often recommended as opposed to straight “out-and-back” trails. 
Participants were also asked to identify locations that would be appropriate for new residential, commercial, 
or industrial development. A summary of this input is as follows. Most attendees planned for 
growth beyond the City’s existing boundaries, but one table did not desire to City grow geographically, 
expressing a desire for only infill and redevelopment. 


 New residential development was recommended on infill or redevelopment sites along the 
riverfront (including the MillFab site), in Kettle Park West, and on the Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property. 
Looking to the periphery of the City, there was support for new residential southwest of the 
current City limits (south of Kettle Park West), but there were also recommendations for 
residential development in areas north, south, east, and west of the City, with no clear consensus. 


 New commercial development was recommended on infill or redevelopment sites along 
the riverfront (including the MillFab site), at the Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property, downtown, in Kettle 
Park West, and at the intersection of Van Buren and Milwaukee Streets. Commercial development 
was also recommended in many locations along USH 51, and where major highway 
intersect, e.g. where USH 51 meets CTH N, where USH 51 meets CTH B, and where CTH 
B meets CTH N 
 


‐‐‐‐‐ Page 58 ‐‐‐‐‐ 
Finally, an area shown for Planned Mixed Use is located east of USH 51 between CTH B and Rutland 
Dunn Town Line Road. This area is part of the Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property, a larger property that 
is planned for a mix of commercial, public open space, and residential uses. The west side of the Linnerud 
STI Holdings, Inc. property shown as Planned Mixed Use on this Plan’s Future Land Use Map. , which is 
consistent with the 2006 Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood Plan. In this area, the Linnerud Detailed 
Neighborhood 
Plan recommends a mix of commercial and residential uses, particularly neighborhood-scale business 
uses, large format retail, senior housing, multi-family, and mixed use development. 
 


 







EXIHIBIT A: PROPOSED COMP PLAN AMENDMENTS 


‐‐‐‐‐ Page 65 ‐‐‐‐‐ 


Northwest Planned Neighborhoods 
There are several Planned Neighborhood areas on the City’s northwest side that generally straddle CTH 


B. The part of this area is located immediately west of Sandhill Elementary School is part of the 
Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property. In 2006, a Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood Plan was 
prepared for the entire Linnerud property. Refer to Appendix B to read the plan in its entirety. On the 
west side of the property, the Linnerud plan recommends a mix of commercial and residential uses, 
particularly neighborhood‐ scale business uses, large format retail, and mixed use development. In the 
central portion of the property, the plan recommends a large central park, which would buffer Planned 
Neighborhood areas from commercial/mixed use areas. The plan also recommends a northwest 
gateway feature located at southeast quadrant of the intersection of USH 51 and CTH B, which could 
include a pedestrian mall, framing structure that creates a focal point, water feature, and a gathering 
space. Finally, the east side of the Linnerud The current plan for this property includes is recommended 
for commercial / mixed use along the USH 51 corridor, a large community park and residential adjacent 
to existing neighborhoods to the south and east; this area is shown on this Plan’s Future Land Use Map 
as Planned Neighborhood. The Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. development plan recommends the following 
for this residential area:  


 The recommended residential density should be between 4 and 8 du/ac for single family 
detached development, 10 to 15 du/ac for two family and townhome development, 10 to 
15 – 30 du/ac for multi‐family development, and 25 to 35 du/ac for senior housing 
development.  
 A landscape and stormwater buffer should separate the Planned Neighborhood from 
USH 51 and CTH B.  
 Internal street connections should connect the Planned Neighborhood to the 
commercial/mixed use area to the west, CTH B, Kriedeman Drive, Kings Lynn Road., and 
Oakridge Way will accommodate a mid‐block pedestrian access point or road access to 
planned collector. 
 The Planned Neighborhood should include bicycle/pedestrian connection to the 
commercial/mixed use area to the west, the central community park, Sandhill Elementary 
School, and other destinations.  


 
North of the Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property and CTH B, the Future Land Use Map depicts a 
Planned Neighborhood area north of the current City limits extending between USH 51 and Williams 
Drive. Nearby features include Stoughton Country Club, Christ Lutheran Church, and the railroad tracks. 
There are relatively few environmental constraints in this area. The area should be served by local road 
extensions, particularly extensions of Lincoln Avenue and Page Street, and bicycle/pedestrian 
connections. 


   


‐‐‐‐‐ Page 117 ‐‐‐‐‐  (under Wastewater Service – last bullet) 


 A new interceptor serving the Northwest Planned Mixed Use Area and the Linnerud STI Holdings, 
Inc. property Neighborhood— leading to a lift station near the center of that neighborhood. 


   


‐‐‐‐‐ Page 119 ‐‐‐‐‐ 


11. Parks and Recreation 
The City of Stoughton maintains an extensive parks and recreation system. As reported in the City’s 
2014 Comprehensive Park and Open Space Plan, 104 acres of active and accessible public park facilities are 
provided by the City. According to the park plan, Stoughton is currently satisfying the recreational 







EXIHIBIT A: PROPOSED COMP PLAN AMENDMENTS 


needs of its residents in terms of the overall ratio of total park acreage to population. However, in 
terms of the provision of specific park types, the City does not meet national recommendations for 
mini-parks or larger community parks. 
 
A complete description of existing park and recreation facilities and programs offered by the City is 
provided in the Park and Open Space Plan. Major recommendations from the City’s park plan are integrated 
with the recommendations of this Comprehensive Plan. This Comprehensive Plan calls for the provision 
of neighborhood park facilities in carefully considered locations within each of the Planned 
Neighborhood areas. Map 9 depicts the five locations recommended in the Park and Open Space Plan for 
future parks. These include the following locations within the current municipal boundary: 


• Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. property on the northwest side of the City 


• Ehle property on the northeast side 


• Stone Crest development on the southeast side 


• Nordic Ridge development on the southwest side 


• Kettle West development on the west side 
The plan also includes an extension of Racetrack Park westward to CTH N. 
The Park and Open Space Plan includes a goal of developing interconnected biking and walking trails 
that provide access to all neighborhoods in the City. In addition to the Dane County Lower Yahara 
River Trail, three new trails are proposed in Stoughton: a South Trail route to connect Stone Crest on 
the far southeast side to the Kettle Park West development on the southwest side; a West Trail route 
to connect the Kettle Park West development with future development at the Linnerud STI Holdings, Inc. 
property on the northwest side; and a North Trail route to connect the northwest corner of the city to Dane 
County’s Viking Park. These future routes are depicted in Map 9. 
 
Map 6a (Page 83) + Map 6b (Page 85) + Map 6c (Page 87) 


 







EXIHIBIT A: PROPOSED COMP PLAN AMENDMENTS 


 
 
Map 9 (Page 111) 


 
 
 
Remove Appendix B (2006 Linnerud Neighborhood Plan)  







Dear Mr. Stacey, 
 
Thank you for recently mailing us a packet of information regarding the upcoming public hearing 
on  
April 10, 2023 regarding the proposed comprehensive plan amendment. Specifically, the land now 
know as the 182 acres southeast of the corner of US Highway 51 and County Highway B, and  
currently owned by STI Holdings. Also, thank you for allow us to make a few comments or 
suggestions on this proposal, 
and we hope that any planners, property owners, or decision makers will take into account our 
considerations listed below. 
 
We live on County Highway B, along with a few other single family residential neighbors, We have 
lived at this location 
for the past 38 years, while some of our neighbors have lived here some 50 years or longer. Our 
backyard property line, and 
our property line to our east will be adjacent to this new 182 development. So of course, many of us 
that live on County  
Highway B are very interested on how this land will be developed.  
 
We think that this new development will be a marvelous addition to the City of Stoughton. We are 
excited about the  
possibilities of a new large park in the area, with walking trails, and a main bike trail running just 
south of, and parallel to 
County Highway B in a east/west orientation, and running from Hwy 51 all the way to the Yahara 
River to the east. 
 
From looking at all of the past and present maps, and attending the Stoughton Trailers community 
meeting on  
February 20, 2023 we all know that residential is being planned behind our property. But, in order 
to help maintain the  
long established integrity of of our neighborhood, that is single family residential, we recommend 
that any future  
residential also be single family residential immediately behind all of the properties currently 
located behind us. 
This would provide a much better blend of existing and future single family residential properties. 
The most recent 
map provided by Stoughton Trailers at their February 20 Open House, showed a series of 
Townhomes/Duplexes behind 
our properties on County Highway B, which we do not favor, support, or recommend. 
 
Thanks again for allowing us our input. We hope all of the decision makers will give serious 
consideration to our request. 
Please keep us updated as the planning and development progresses into the future.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Jim and Denise Mattke 
3033 County Highway B 
Stoughton, WI 53589 












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\041023\Plan Com Info\1000 Nordland CSM Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 3, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 10, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of April 11, 2023. 
 
Request by Steve Tremlett to combine the lots at 1000 and 1008 Nordland Drive by Certified 
Survey Map (CSM). 
This CSM is proposed to combine the parcels to create a larger lot for single-family residential 
development.  The resolution and survey are provided.  A recommendation to the Council is 
necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 


Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine properties at 1000 and 1008 Nordland Drive 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0    


Fiscal Impact: 
 
  


File Number: 
 
R -    - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


RECITALS 
1. The CSM is referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City Council. 


 
2. Steve Tremlett of MSA is requesting to combine the properties for future single-family residential 


development.   
 


3. The Plan Commission reviewed the CSM on April 10, 2023 and determined the CSM is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 


4. The Plan Commission recommends approval of the CSM by the Common Council as conditioned 
below. The Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation. 
 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM, subject to: 
• Both sanitary sewer laterals and both water laterals to be extended into the building; and 
• The CSM shall be recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy provided to the 


City of Stoughton Department of Planning & Development; 
 


 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\1000 Nordland CSM Resolution 2023.doc 







CITY OF STOUGHTON
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP/PLAT APPLICATION


FEES EFFECTIVE 1.1 .2


Date of Application ________________________________________________________________________


Applicant Name __________________________________________ Phone___________________________


Applicant Email___________________________________________________________________________________


Owners Name (if different than applicant) ________________________________ Phone_______________


Subject Property Address _____


Application for:  CSM ________ PRELIMINARY PLAT ________ FINAL PLAT ________


CURRENT FEES


CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP: 
PRELIMINARY PLAT FEE: 
FINAL PLAT FEE: 


$1 5 AND $4 /LOT*
$4  AND $4 /LOT*
$2 0 AND $4 /LOT*


Number of Lots: .


Fee Amount: $ .


Owner/Applicant Signature___________________________________________ Date_________________


ANY QUESTIONS, CALL THE DEPT. OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT AT 608-646-0421.


*ANY ADDITIONAL COST INCURRED OVER THE PERMIT FEE AMOUNT WILL BE BILLED
TO THE PROPERTY OWNER AND/OR RESPONSIBLE PARTY.  DWELLING UNITS INCLUDE
EXISTING AND PROPOSED DWELLINGS.


S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\CSM-Plat Application 2022.doc


3/30/23







N87°02'00"E 124.71'


S0
0°


37
'4


9"
E


14
4.


33
'


S89°22'11"W 140.02'


N
00


°4
2'


14
"W


15
4.


23
'


N
00


°4
2'


14
"W


20
0.


16
'


R = 15.00'
A = 24.17'
Δ = 92°20'11"
CHB = N46° 47' 55"W
CHL = 21.64'


68
.3


3'
76


.0
0'


76
.0


0'
78


.2
3'


1.) BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE WEST
LINE OF THE SW1/4 OF SECTION 7 WHICH IS
ASSUMED TO BEAR N00°42'14"W AS SHOWN ON
NORDIC RIDGE SUBDIVISION PLAT.


2.) PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS AND
AGREEMENTS BOTH RECORDED AND UNRECORDED.


NOTES


DANE COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP #


PROJECT NO.


CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY: 


FILE NO.


SHEET NO.


21669001


B. TISDALE
S. SCHALLERT


21669001


1 OF 3© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


A SURVEY TO COMBINE LOTS 64 AND 65, NORDIC RIDGE, LOCATED IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE
SW 1/4 OF SECTION 7, T5N, R11E IN THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.


CLIENT/OWNER:


LOT 1
21,958 SQ. FT.


0.504 AC.


N
00


°4
2'


14
"W


   
26


28
.9


2'
(2


62
8.


88
')


SW
 C


O
R


N
ER


 T
O


W
 1


/4
 C


O
R


N
ER


LEGEND


FOUND 1.25"
IRON REBAR


SET 3/4" X 24"
IRON REBAR
WEIGHING 1.50
LBS/FT


60'


RECORDED AS(XXX)


N
O


R
D


LA
N


D
 D


R
IV


E


FOUND 0.75"
IRON REBAR


ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC
2364 JACKSON STREET #265
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


0 20 40


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


FOUND ALUMINUM MONUMENT
WEST 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 7, T5N, R11E


FOUND ALUMINUM MONUMENT
SOUTHWEST CORNER
SECTION 7, T5N, R11E


MARKENS GATE ROAD


30'30'


60
'


30
'


30
'


60
'


30
'


30
'


LOT 2


NORDIC RIDGE


LOT 1


NORDIC RIDGE
LOT 3


NORDIC RIDGE


LOT 57


NORDIC RIDGE


LOT 64


NORDIC RIDGE


(AASEN DRIVE)


PUBLIC STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 5820249


LOT 58


NORDIC RIDGE


LOT 59


NORDIC RIDGE


LOT 65


NORDIC RIDGE


LOT 66


NORDIC RIDGE


12' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
PER NORDIC RIDGE


E2


E4


E5 E3


E1


LINE BEARING DISTANCE


E1 N87°02'00"E 13.76'


E2 10.01'


E3 18.01'


E4 10.01'


E5 18.01'


N87°02'00"E


S00°42'14"E


S87°02'00"W


N00°42'18"W







PL
O


T 
D


AT
E:


Sa
tu


rd
ay


, M
ar


ch
 1


1,
 2


02
3 


11
:2


0:
55


 A
M


,  
G


:\2
1\


21
66


9\
21


66
90


01
\C


AD
D


\S
ur


ve
y\


D
ra


w
in


gs
\C


SM
\S


to
ug


ht
on


 N
or


di
c 


R
id


ge
 C


SM
_L


ot
 6


4-
65


.d
w


g


SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE


I, Bradley L. Tisdale, Professional Land Surveyor S-2824, do hereby certify that by the direction of Eldon Land
Development LLC, as owner, I have surveyed and mapped Lots 64 and 65 of NORDIC RIDGE as recorded in Vol.
59-074B, P. 340-342 as Document #4613105, located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 7, T5N,
R11E, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.


Said parcel includes 21,958 sq ft or 0.504 acres.


I further certify that the lands described hereon and that the map is a correct representation of the exterior
boundaries of the land surveyed and that this Certified Survey Map is in full compliance with Chapter 236.34 of the
Wisconsin State Statutes and the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.


______________________________________________________
Bradley L. Tisdale, PLS S-2824                                  Date


DANE COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP #


PROJECT NO.


SURVEYOR:
DRAWN BY: 


FILE NO.


SHEET NO.


B. TISDALE
S. SCHALLERT


2 OF 3


CORPORATE OWNER'S CERTIFICATE


Eldon Land Development LLC, as owner, does hereby certify that said company has caused the land described on
this Certified Survey Map to be surveyed and mapped as represented hereon.  Said company further certifies that this
Certified Survey Map is required by Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin State Statutes to be submitted to the City of
Stoughton for approval.


In witness whereof, the said Eldon Land Development LLC has caused these presents to be signed by its
representative


this ______day of ______________________, 2023.


Rob Hostrawser, Director of Operations


STATE OF ___________________)


__________________ COUNTY) SS


Personally came before me this  _______  day of _______________ , 2023, the above named Rob Hostrawser, to
me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.


_______________________________________
Notary Public, State of ____________________.


My commission expires ___________________ .


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


CLIENT/OWNER:


ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC
2364 JACKSON STREET #265
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


21669001


21669001


A SURVEY TO COMBINE LOTS 64 AND 65, NORDIC RIDGE, LOCATED IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE
SW 1/4 OF SECTION 7, T5N, R11E IN THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.







PL
O


T 
D


AT
E:


Sa
tu


rd
ay


, M
ar


ch
 1


1,
 2


02
3 


11
:2


1:
12


 A
M


,  
G


:\2
1\


21
66


9\
21


66
90


01
\C


AD
D


\S
ur


ve
y\


D
ra


w
in


gs
\C


SM
\S


to
ug


ht
on


 N
or


di
c 


R
id


ge
 C


SM
_L


ot
 6


4-
65


.d
w


g


CITY OF STOUGHTON APPROVAL CERTIFICATE


This Certified Survey Map was approved for recording per the City of Stoughton action of ________________, 2023.


_____________________________________________________
Candee Christen, City Clerk                            Date


DANE COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP #


PROJECT NO.


SURVEYOR:
DRAWN BY: 


FILE NO.


SHEET NO.


B. TISDALE
S. SCHALLERT


3 OF 3


DANE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS


Received for recording this _______ day of __________________, 2023 at _____o'clock __.m. and


recorded as Document _____________________ in Volume _______ of Certified Survey Maps of Dane


County on Pages ________________.


_____________________________________________________
Kristi Chlebowski, Register of Deeds                            Date


© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


CONSENT OF CORPORATE MORTGAGEE


One Community Bank, a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Wisconsin, as mortgagee of the lands described above, hereby consents to the surveying and mapping of the lands
described above, and does hereby consent to the above certificate of Eldon Land Development LLC, owner.


This ______day of ______________________, 2023.


__________________________________________
Authorized Representative (Signature)


__________________________________________
Authorized Representative (Print)


STATE OF ___________________)


__________________ COUNTY) SS


Personally came before me this  _______  day of _______________ , 2023, the above named _______________,
to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.


______________________________________
Notary Public, State of ____________________.


My commission expires ___________________ .


CLIENT/OWNER:


ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC
2364 JACKSON STREET #265
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


21669001


21669001


A SURVEY TO COMBINE LOTS 64 AND 65, NORDIC RIDGE, LOCATED IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE
SW 1/4 OF SECTION 7, T5N, R11E IN THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN.







Map data ©2023 200 ft 


1000 Nordland Dr





		Sheets and Views

		CSM Page 1



		Stoughton Nordic Ridge CSM_Lot 64-65-CSM Page 1

		Sheets and Views

		CSM Page 1














\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\041023\Plan Com Info\325-333 Isham Driveway Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 3, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 10, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Request by Dwayne Strandlie of Eldon Homes for approval of wider driveways at the Parker 
Cole Addition, duplex lots 1 through 6. 
This request is to allow more width to access the property at 6 duplex lots within the Parker Cole 
Addition.  The current zoning code requirements for driveway width are as follows: 
 
78-702 (10)  Width of driveways. All access drives shall have a minimum width of ten feet for 
one- and two-family dwellings, and 18 feet for all other land uses. All curb openings for access 
drives shall have a maximum width of 24 feet for all residential uses, and 30 feet for all non-
residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line. Access drives may be flared between the 
right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet. May be exceeded 
with explicit plan commission approval for uses other than single family. 
 
The resolution, letter and plan are provided.   
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving a wider driveway width for the Parker Cole Addition, Lots 1 through 6, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 8 - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 10, 2023 


RECITALS 
 


A. Dwayne Strandlie of Eldon Homes (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for wider driveway 
widths in the Parker Cole Addition, duplex lots 1 through 6, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (the 
“Property”). 
 


B. The Properties are zoned TR-6 Two Family Residential which is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan.   


 
C. The City Plan Commission discussed the proposed driveway widths of 37 feet at the property 


line and 41 feet at the curb opening at their regular April 10, 2023 meeting. 
 


  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the driveway widths of 37 feet at the 
property line and 41 feet at the curb opening at the Parker Cole Addition, duplex lots 1 through 6, 
Stoughton, WI, as presented. 
 
 
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Planning Commission Chair 
 


 
    
  
   
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2023\324 S Water Street Site Plan - 7-23.doc 
  







Eldon Homes 
Dwayne Strandlie 


 


135 W. Main Street , Stoughton, WI 
608-480-9382 


dwayne@eldonhomes.net 


3-29-2023 


Dear Stoughton Planning Commission,  


  We are currently building a duplex at 325/333 Isham Street in Stoughton. The plan layout has 2, 
2 car garages in the center of the building. Per the driveway ordinance the maximum width we 
could have for a single driveway at the right of way is 24’, with a maximum curb opening of 29’. 
With the layout of two 16’ garage doors, and the approximate 45” between them, the edge of the 
drive at the right of way would be approximately 6’ into the garage door opening. This would 
make it difficult to back out, or drive into the one side of the garage without driving over the 
curb. 
   Our request would be to create two separate 17’ drives, with approximately 45” between them, 
and a 6” curb between the two at the street. They both would have a flare at the curb opening of 
approximately 21’ (please see the drawing submitted) 
    If that is not acceptable, our next request would be a 37’ driveway, with a 41’ curb cut. (please 
see the drawing submitted)   
   Which ever lay out is approved, there will be 5 other duplexes with the same driveway need. 
Lots 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 on Isham street. 
  
Warm regards, 
Dwayne K Strandlie 


Director of Quality 
Eldon Homes 
 







 
 
 


 


 


    
 
 


 


 


    
 
 


 


 


   


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
  


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
  


 
 


  
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
  


 
 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
  


 
 


  
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


  


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


  


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


  
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
SBSBSBSBSBSBSBSBSBSBSBSB


874


872


873


874


8
7
4


875


875


875


876


876


8
7
7


877


878


878


10


Scale 1" = 20’


200


874


875


8
7
5


8
7
6


87
6


8
7
7


8
7
7


8
7
8


8
7
88


7
7


8
7
6


875


Lot 1


Lot 2


Lot 3


N


10’x10’


Patio


10’x10’


Patio


Window


Well


Window


Well



dwayn

Line



dwayn

Line



dwayn

Line



dwayn

Line



dwayn

Architect

37' drive



dwayn

Architect

2'Flares



dwayn

Arrow



dwayn

Architect

41' Curb opening



dwayn

Line



dwayn

Line







mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







Map data ©2023 100 ft 


324 Isham St


ISHAM   STREET



mstacey

Highlight












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\041023\Plan Com Info\KPW Lot 15 and 27 Concept Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 3, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 10, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
Presentation by Forward Development Group regarding a Planned Development Concept 
Plan to construct 2 four-story residential apartments on Lot 27 and a portion of Lot 15, Kettle 
Park West.   
Forward Development Group will be presenting a concept plan for (4) twenty-four unit apartment 
buildings as the first step in the planned development process.  The buildings are planned to be 2-
story and the total units would be 96. 
 
The concept plan and staff review are provided.  The next step with either be another concept plan 
or a public hearing for the general development plan. 
 
 
 
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


 
Forward Development Group 


Moving Business Forward 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 


Verona, WI  53593  
Ph 608.848.9050 


Fax 608.848.9051  
forwarddevgroup.com 


 


 March 24, 2022 


Rodney Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 
Department of Planning & Development 
207 South Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
 
Dear Rodney, 


 
Forward Development Group, LLC (“FDG”) is submitting the following materials for staff review of the 
revised Lot 27 and Lot 15 (“project site”) Multifamily Concept Plan: 
 
 


A. Project Location Map 
B. Revised Multifamily Concept Plan 


 


After receiving staff input on the revised concept plan, FDG intends to submit a General Development 
Plan application April 7 for Plan Commission review May 8, 2023.  


Project Site Location 


As shown on Attachment A, the project site is located on the northern portion of Lot 15 of the Tru by 
Hilton Hotel (“KPW Hospitality”) site, 2500 Jackson Street, and Lot 27 at the terminus of Cromwell Court. 
The project site would require a two-lot certified survey map (“CSM”) to form a single parcel for the 
project. Lot 2 would be the multifamily parcel and KPW Hospitality would become Lot 1. 


 


Project Background 


Lot 15 - KPW Hospitality 


The initial planning and 2017 Specific Implementation Plan for KPW Hospitality included an event center 
on the north portion of Lot 15 as a potential expansion to the hotel. In summer 2020, the Tru by Hilton 
Hotel opened and faced immediate challenges due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Since the beginning of the 
pandemic, the hospitality market noted significant decreased business and personal travel. For example, 
revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) is a key performance metric used in the hotel industry which is 
calculated by multiplying the average daily room rate by its occupancy rate. When the hotel was originally 
planned, projections supported by detailed market studies indicated occupancy ranges in the mid-60% 
range; the year-to-date occupancy recorded for 2022 was in the mid-40% range. As a result, KPW 







 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 2 
 
 


 


Hospitality’s RevPAR was currently 40% lower than originally projected at the end of 2022, creating a 
notable financial obstacle when considering constructing a new event center. 


Furthermore, the original impetus for the event center on the hotel site was to support weekend 
occupancy. The financial model for the hotel anticipated weekday, business travel to have high occupancy 
while weekend personal travel would have lower occupancy and require additional support from the 
event center. Currently, weekday occupancy continues to be low due to the lack of business travel while 
weekend occupancy has held relatively steady mostly due to events held at local venues such as The 
Lagaret and The Field’s Reserve. Although the addition of these venues to the immediate market has 
improved weekend stays at the Tru by Hilton hotel, it has also created direct competition for any 
additional future event space in the market.  


In summary, the quantifiable decrease in hotel performance coupled with the lack of business and work 
travel has led KPW Hospitality to consider other site uses for remaining north portion of Lot 15.  


Lot 27 – Multifamily 


Lot 27 is currently zoned MR-10 (10 dwelling units per acre) resulting in a maximum density of 25 total 
residential units. In July 2021, FDG submitted a 24-unit multifamily concept plan for Lot 27 with a duplex 
product specified. Although diligent efforts with various contractors and construction plans were 
explored, FDG was unable to create a financially viable plan to move the project forward due to 
continuously increasing construction costs. Since January of 2021, construction costs have escalated 
approximately 24%, creating a notable financial barrier to overcome in all projects. The projects impacted 
most significantly have been lower density development since the critical mass of generated revenue is 
not sufficient to support the increased construction costs.  In conversations with City Staff, Lot 27 is not 
sufficiently sized to support a higher density residential project and alternate solutions needed to be 
explored. 


A CSM to combine the north portion of Lot 15 and the entirety of Lot 27 would create an approximately 
4.3-acre developable site and provide the land area needed to support residential densities similar to 
other multifamily projects within the City of Stoughton. The increased site area would then allow for 
appropriate density to have a better chance at supporting current construction costs.  


Concept Plan Land Use, Density and Bulk Regulations 


As depicted in Attachment B, the proposed planned development (“PD”) shall meet the standards of MR-
24 Zoning District with several exceptions highlighted in yellow below.   


Land Use:  permitted and conditional uses outlined in zoning district MR-24. 


Density and Intensity Requirements: 


Zoning 
District 


Maximum Gross 
Density (MGD) du/ac 


Minimum landscape 
surface ratio (LSR) 


Maximum accessory 
building coverage 


MR-24 24 50% 10% 
PD 24 


Max – 103 units 
30% 


Concept Plan – 32% 
10% 


 
 







 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 3 
 
 


 


Bulk Regulations: 


Zoning 
District 


Min Lot 
Area (sf 
per du) 


Min Lot 
Width 


(ft) 


Min 
Setback 


Front (ft) 


Min 
Setback 
Side (ft) 


Min 
Setback 
Rear (ft) 


Min Setback 
pvmt to side or 
rear/street (ft) 


Min Dwelling 
Unit 


Separation (ft) 


Max Building 
Height 


(ft) 


MR-24 1,815  90 25 25 50 5/10 40 40 
PD 1,815 90 25 25 25 5/10 40 40 


 
MR-24 Exemptions 


• Conditional Use: greater than 12 dwelling units per building 
o Increased density per building allows for increased construction efficiency and cost 


reduction 
• Minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR): 30% 


 
Existing Lot and Zoning LSR Site Area (sf) Max 


Impervious (sf) 
Total 


Lot 27 (MR-10) 50% 108,900 54,450 74,052 (40%) 
Lot 15 (Planned Business) 25% 78,408 19,602 
Concept Plan 30% 187,308 56,192 56,192 (30%) 


 
Comparing the existing zoning with the proposed concept plan, the proposed landscape 
surface ratio is less than the combine LSR of lot 15 and 27. The proposed LSR provides the 
area required to meet off-street parking requirements and the building footprints of the 
reduced density product.   
 
Onsite stormwater will be provided to ensure the overall stormwater system is not 
negatively impacted by the proposed LSR.   


 
• Minimum Setback Rear: 25 feet 


o The reduced rear yard setback provides additional space for site circulation and 
access. 


 


Multifamily Concept Plan (Four Buildings)  


• Use: Market Rate Multifamily Residential  
• Maximum Height: Two-stories 
• Building Footprint: 11,275 square-feet  
• Total Building Gross Floor Area: 90,200 square-feet (no underground parking) 
• Unit Count and Distribution: 


 







 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 4 
 
 


 


 
 


Site Access, Circulation, and Parking 


During the February 13 Plan Commission and February 14 City Council Concept Plan review, City officials 
expressed concern about the density of 140 residential unit and the traffic associated with the project. In 
particular, concerns were raised regarding the shared access easement between Tru hotel and the 
multifamily site and the potential conflicts between the different user groups.  


Utilizing the feedback FDG received, the revised concept plan reduces the residential units from 140-units 
to 96-units. The reduced density provides an opportunity to eliminate the shared access easement and 
utilize a single access point via Cromwell Court right-of-way. By removing the shared access easement and 
drive, the hotel operations and traffic will remain the same as the current condition and alleviate the 
traffic safety concerns associated with the two different uses.  


FDG is currently working with KL Engineering on a traffic memo to supplement the forthcoming GDP 
submittal. The traffic memo will compare the current zoning with the proposed MR-24 zoning to evaluate 
the anticipated conditions of the proposed multifamily development. Based on preliminary analysis 
conducted by KL Engineering, we anticipate the revised zoning and site plan to have no negative impact 
on the existing streets and traffic patterns.  


The private drive will be designed to accommodate fire and EMS turning radius and provide clear site lines 
to the main entrances. The parking lot and private drive will be designed to accommodate the turning 
radius of fire trucks and other large vehicles. The circulation loop labeled (1) on Exhibit B, also provides 
clear access for fire to the adjacent Kettle Park West Senior Living.  


Pedestrian circulation is provided by a network of sidewalks and a central courtyard space. Direct 
connection to Cromwell Court and the multipurpose trail is provided to encourage walkability to adjacent 
land uses. In addition, to promote multimodal transportation opportunities, bicycle parking stalls are 
being proposed adjacent to the multifamily buildings.  







 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 5 
 
 


 


Building and Courtyard Design  


The revised site plan utilizes a townhome style apartment to meet the density of MR-24 zoning. The 24-
unit, two-story buildings suits the context of the adjacent single-family neighborhood and creates a 
transition from the large-scale Kettle Park West Senior Living and the Tru Hotel to the small-scale single-
family Meadows. The townhome style apartment also introduces an under-utilized housing type within 
the market. 


The overall building material palette includes attractive and durable materials and detailing including vinyl 
siding (horizontal) with accents of board and batten panel (vertical) and ‘Tando’ composite stone. A 
conventional pitched roof with gable features creates articulation in the facades and roof/eave line. The 
conceptual images below depict the architectural character and style.  


Any ancillary structures, such as the potential detached garages, will be designed with the same quality 
and architectural character as the residential buildings.  


 


 


Amenities 


In addition to the proposed multi-use path connectivity and network of internal sidewalks, an exterior 
community space is being proposed to include grilling stations, picnic tables, an outdoor fire table and an 
open lawn space for a flexibility of use. Exterior amenity spaces are one of the most utilized by residents. 
Although the reduced density prohibits the inclusion of a club house space, the courtyard provides 
opportunity for community gathering. 


 







 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 6 
 
 


 


Conclusion 


This application is aimed to not only provide alternate housing opportunities in the immediate Meadows 
at Kettle Park West community, but also satisfy a notable market need. As the single-family residential 
housing market continues to encounter elevated construction costs and a challenging interest rate 
environment, the focus on providing alternate housing opportunities has become extremely important. 
The focus of this plan is to provide housing opportunities for individuals who may not be at a point in 
which they are able to purchase a home but would like to live in the Kettle Park West area. The multifamily 
units would provide individuals and families the opportunity to live and work in the immediate area (i.e. 
the commercial center), while at the same time, offering a stepping block into the single-family residential 
housing options currently being expanded adjacent to the commercial center.  
 
We are excited to work with the City on this project and look forward to furthering the vision for the 
Multifamily Concept Plan.  
 
Sincerely, 


 


Konner Kearney  


Director of Sales and Entitlement 


Forward Development Group, LLC 


 
CC: 
 
Dave Jenkins (JSD Professional Services) 
Ron Henshue (Forward Development Group) 
Fred DeVillers (Forward Development Group) 
Connor Nett (Forward Development Group)  


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Attachments 
 


A. Project Location Map 
B. Multifamily Concept Plan 







 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 7 
 
 


 


ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











 SCC – Building A 
 January 26, 2023 
 Page 8 
 
 


 


ATTACHMENT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







20' wide Circulation Loop







20' wide Circulation Loop







NO
PARKING
LOADING
ZONE


JACKSON STREET


51


138


OAK OPEN
ING DRIVE


OAK OPEN
ING DRIVE


JACKSON STREET


PROPOSED AMENDMENT KETTLE PARK WEST


BUILDING FOOTPRINTS AND SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN FOR CONTEXT PURPOSES 
ONLY AND MAY NOT REFLECT ACTURAL STRUCTURES ERECTED AS OF MAY 2019


0 150 300 600
PROJECT NUMBER • 157018


Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural


Unsewered Residential


Single Family Residential


Two Family Residential


Multi-Family Residential


Planned Office


Neighborhood Office


Planned Business


Neighborhood Business


Planned Industrial


Right-of-Way


Surface Water


Institutional


General Industrial


Heavy Industrial


Landfill/Extraction


Environmental Corridor (subject to c


Recreation or Public Open Space


Planned Neighborhood


Central Business


Planned Mixed Use


1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial


1
2


3
4


5


6


1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space


1
2
3


45
6
7


JACKSON JACCKSOON


OAK OPEN
ING DRIVE


G D


OOAOAK OOOPENENN
INGGG DRIRIVIVE


OAK OPEN
ING DRIVE


OP


OAAKK OPOPEPEN
ININNG DDRDRIVEVE


JACKSON STREET


JAJAACKSKSSONN
SSTREREEEET
TSTT


ntialaa


tiala
ial
tiala


e
ess



mstacey

Highlight







\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Developments\Kettle Park West\Lot 15 & 27\Updated Concept 3.24.23\Concept Plan Review Lot 15 and 27 
KPW 3.28.23.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 


         March 28, 2023 
Forward Development Group 
Conner Nett 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 
Verona, WI.  53593 
 
 
Dear Mr. Nett, 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed Planned Development - Concept Plan for a multi-
family residential project at Kettle Park West, Lots 15 and 27.  Plan provided no March 24, 
2023.  The following items are identified for your review.  We will need fully dimensioned plans 
for future reviews. 
 
1. Kettle Park West lot 15 is zoned Planned Business and lot 27 is zoned MR-10 – Multi-


Family Residential.  The plan is to combine the rear portion of lot 15 (TRU Hilton site) with 
lot 27 by certified survey and rezone the property to Planned Development to provide zoning 
requirement flexibility for four 2-story multi-family residential buildings.   
 


2. The Stoughton Comprehensive Plan proposes Planned Business uses for Lot 15 and Multi-
Family uses for Lot 27.  The proposed multi-family use on lot 15 is not consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Proposed zoning amendments are to be consistent with the Future 
Land Use Map; however, the precise location of zoning district boundaries may vary, as 
judged appropriate by the Plan Commission and Common Council.  Departures from the 
exact land use boundaries depicted on the Future Land Use Map may be particularly 
appropriate for a Planned Development and properties located at the edge of future land use 
boundaries.  A determination will need to be made that this is an appropriate change. 


 
3. The Planned Development District is intended to provide incentives for redevelopment in 


areas of the community which are experiencing a lack of reinvestment, or which require 
flexible zoning treatment because of factors which are specific to the site.  This district is 
designed to forward both aesthetic and economic objectives of the City by controlling the site 
design and the land use, appearance, density or intensity of development within the district in 
a manner which is consistent with the sound land use, urban design, and economic 
revitalization principles.  The application of these standards will ensure long-term progress 
and broad participation toward these principles.  Section 78-914 provides regulations which 
govern the procedure and requirements for review and approval/denial, of the proposed 
Planned Development, and to provide for the possible relaxation of certain development 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Developments\Kettle Park West\Lot 15 & 27\Updated Concept 3.24.23\Concept Plan Review Lot 15 and 27 
KPW 3.28.23.docx 


standards pertaining to the underlying standard zoning district.  The underlying zoning 
district will be MR-24 - Multi-Family Residential.  Future reviews will be based on the 
PD and MR-24 district requirements. 
 


4. The Planned Development: Concept Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(6) are 
as follows: 
(a) The applicant shall provide the zoning administrator with a draft PD concept plan 


submittal packet for a determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD 
on the plan commission agenda for concept plan review. This submittal packet shall 
contain all of the following items, prior to its acceptance by the zoning administrator 
and placement of the item on a plan commission agenda for concept plan review:  
1. A location map of the subject property and its vicinity at 11 inches by 17 inches, 


as depicted on a copy of the City of Stoughton Planned Land Use Map; Staff to 
provide. 


2. A general written description of proposed PD including:  
a. General project themes and images;  
b. The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses;  
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio  
d. The general treatment of natural features;  
e. The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets;  
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan;  
g. An initial draft list of zoning standards, which will not be met by the 


proposed PD, and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of 
zoning standards, which will be more than met, by the proposed PD and the 
location(s) in which they apply, as compared to the most comparable zoning 
district(s). Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the plan 
commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of 
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to 
the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility; and  


Provided 
3. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements 


of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  
a. Land use exemptions; N/A 
b. Density and intensity exemptions;  


• Allow 30% landscape surface area ratio (50% typical); 
• Allow 4 principle structures (1 typical or CUP); 
• Allow more than 12 dwelling units per building (CUP typical) 


c. Bulk exemptions;  
• Allow minimum rear yard setback of 25 feet (50 feet typical) 


d. Landscaping exceptions; N/A 
e. Parking and loading requirements exceptions; N/A 







\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Developments\Kettle Park West\Lot 15 & 27\Updated Concept 3.24.23\Concept Plan Review Lot 15 and 27 
KPW 3.28.23.docx 


4. A conceptual plan drawing (at 11 inches by 17 inches) of the general land use 
layout and the general location of major public streets and/or private drives. The 
applicant may submit copies of a larger version of the "bubble plan" in addition to 
the 11 inches by 17 inches reduction.  A suitable concept plan has been 
submitted. 
a. Within ten working days of receiving the draft PD concept plan submittal 


packet, the zoning administrator shall determine whether the submittal is 
complete. Once the zoning administrator has received a complete packet, the 
proposed PD concept plan shall be placed on the plan commission agenda. 
This will be on the April 10, 2023 Plan Commission agenda. 


b. At the plan commission meeting, the applicant shall engage in an informal 
discussion with the plan commission regarding the conceptual PD. 
Appropriate topics for discussion may include the any of the information 
provided in the PD concept plan submittal packet, or other items as 
determined by the plan commission.  Expected 


c. Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall 
be in no way be binding upon the applicant or the city, but should be 
considered as the informal, non-binding basis for proceeding to the next step. 
The preferred procedure is for one or more iterations of plan commission 
review of the concept plan to occur prior to introduction of the formal 
petition for rezoning which accompanies the GDP application.  As per Plan 
Commission recommendation. 


 
5. Parkland and park facilities fees will be necessary for this project (140 units) as follows: 


• 1,019 square feet of parkland per unit. (Parkland for 24 units is accounted for) 72 
units requires 73,368 square feet or 1.68 acres.  (The City does have the option to 
take a fee in lieu of dedication at $1,941 per unit if suitable parkland cannot be 
provided) 


• $2,742 per unit for park facilities.  $197,424 


• $65 per unit for trail improvements.  $4,680 
 
Total for park and trail impact fees:  $202,104 
 


6. City Fire and EMS staff are reviewing the site plan for emergency vehicle access through the 
site.  It appears difficult to maneuver a ladder truck through the site.  We need more details 
about to confirm this. 
 


7. Contact Stoughton Utilities at 608.873.3379 to discuss electric, water and wastewater 
services. 
 
 
 







\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Developments\Kettle Park West\Lot 15 & 27\Updated Concept 3.24.23\Concept Plan Review Lot 15 and 27 
KPW 3.28.23.docx 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 
 


    
    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
    Michael P. Stacey 
    Zoning Administrator 












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\041023\Plan Com Info\Zoning Amend Sykes Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 29, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 10, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting  
 
Discuss Home Occupation Sales. 
Staff found that most local communities do not allow sales from residential 
properties.  Some require a permit to have any type of home occupation. 
 
Staff contacted the US Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives Group 
Supervisor for the State of Wisconsin to check on the one residential property owner 
licensed for gun sales.  The supervisor had a record of contacting the City of 
Stoughton Planning Office in 2019 and confirmed they were informed that sales is 
not allowed in a residential district.  Currently, the owner of that residential property 
is doing online sales only.   
 
This information was provided to the person requesting the ordinance change and he 
now plans to seek online sales. 
 
At this point, we recommend keeping the ordinance as written. 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



